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FACT:
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The New World Order or NWO is an all too real movement whose goal is to replace sovereign nation-states using an all-encompassing propaganda whose ideology hails the establishment of the New World Order as the culmination of history's progress.

Many influential historical and contemporary figures have been purported to be part of a cabal that operates through many front organizations to orchestrate significant political and financial events, ranging from causing systemic crises to pushing through controversial policies, at both national and international levels, as steps in an ongoing plot to achieve world domination.
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FACT:
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During the 20th century many politicians, such as Woodrow Wilson and Winston Churchill, used the term "new world order" to refer to a new period of history characterized by a dramatic change in world political thought and in the balance of power after World War I and World War II.  They all saw the period as an opportunity to implement idealistic proposals for global governance in the sense of new collective efforts to address worldwide problems that go beyond the capacity of individual nation-states to solve.  These proposals led to the formation of international organizations, such as the UN in 1945 and NATO in 1949, and international regimes, such as the Bretton Woods system, 1944-1971, and the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade (GATT, 1947-1994.
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CHAPTER ONE
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Theodore Roosevelt Bridge.  Potomac River Washington, D.C.  7.00 a.m.

Thick grey clouds held the sun at bay, prolonging the night and helping maintain below freezing temperature in the nation’s capital.

Few dared brave the cold, but for dog walkers and those relegating to using their feet to get to work and run chores.

The first cars of the morning commute moved unimpeded through deserted city streets.

The Nation’s Capital had barely woken up when, at 5:00 a.m., a body floated to the surface of the Potomac River, the majority of the rocks in the victim’s pants and jacket having floated out due to the action of the tides.

By 6:00 a.m., it was spotted by a man out for an early morning jog.

By 6:30 a.m., bridge maintenance personnel had been notified and were at the scene.  They were quickly followed by detectives and the coroner’s office.  

The marine detachment debated the best way to retrieve the body without freezing their asses off.  None, especially the divers, wanted to get into thirty-four degree water and an atmospheric wind-chill of minus 40 Fahrenheit.  Finally, they figured it could be done while remaining on the banks of the river.  Two of the men, in wading boots, walked partway down the bank and fished the body out of the water using grappling hooks.  

Only after they got the recently deceased to the bank did the others come forward to help.  

After an exchange of curses impugning the manhood of those who chose to remain ashore, did real detective work begin.

A brief analysis of the body indicated it had been in the water at least twenty-four hours.  It was bloated, grotesque.  

They found no I.D. on the body, which wasn’t unusual.  People wound up in the river for all sorts of reasons, none of them good.  

Some did not want to be found or recognized after a suicide; others did not want the victim to be recognized after he was killed.

However, in this case, the man was identifiable.  He was a reporter whose work had graced the front pages of the major newspapers and magazines for a decade or more.

Whatever Isaac Mayweather had been in life, he was now just a statistic.
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CHAPTER TWO
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Home of Paul Decker.  Garden Village Apts.  SE Wash., D.C.  6:30 p.m.

A dark purple streak lying in the far reaches of the western sky represented all that was left of the day by the time Paul Decker stirred in the recliner where he’d fallen asleep after the twenty-six hour flight starting on a military C-5 Galaxy cargo plane from Jalalabad, Afghanistan to Ramstein Air Force base that served the Landstuhi Regional Medical Center, the largest hospital outside the continental U.S.  There, Paul was cleared to continue on his trip via British Airways to London, then on to Washington, D.C.

He got to his feet, barely taking notice of the remnants of a prismatic sunset, and made his way to the bathroom where he washed his hands and face.  As he dried them, he glanced in the mirror above the washbasin.  The image that stared back at him was, he admitted, losing its handsome appearance.  The lean face that had been so dashing in his youth, and so attractive to women of all ages, was beginning to look tired and strained in middle age.  

He had risked all for his country, overtly and covertly, but now asked himself if he had really made a difference.  What price glory? 

He told himself he had to get out of the military, but the man behind the face knew better.  After a certain number of years, there was no getting out.  One was what one was for the rest of their life.  

Paul pushed himself away from the sink and, in the eroding light, walked to the window, curious about what the world outside was doing.  He parted the curtains and opened the window, looking at the city below, while listening absently to the TV behind him as the announcer droned on....


In local news, a man set to appear before the Senate Judiciary committee tomorrow, regarding possible vote tampering in presidential elections going back to the 60s, was fished out of the Potomac River early today.  Mr. Isaac Mayweather, who worked for the Washington Star, left behind a wife and two children, barely teenagers.  Initial reports point to suicide, but local police are releasing few details.

The Senate Environmental and Public Works Committee, chaired by Senator Gaylord Tyson, will question Stanley Abrams, quality controller for Dillard Electronics, sometime before thn end of the week.  Tens of thousands of old PC computers, main frames, medical scanners, MRI machines, printers and shredders, collected from customers buying new units, were found on the beaches of Somalia, Eritrea and Ethiopia, dumped there illegally, along with other toxic waste from a dozen different transnational corporations.

This station will be covering those hearings live.



“Isaac?” Paul asked himself.  

He had met the man several times in the “watering holes” around the capital.  Isaac was a top-notch reporter, always pushing the envelope, demanding answers to tough questions, putting people on the record, threatening to camp out at their home, or office or place of business if answers were not forthcoming.

From time to time Isaac had tried to corral Paul into sharing his war stories; pick his brain and maybe find a gem he could turn into a feature article.

Paul deferred and Isaac accepted the decision, knowing Paul’s security clearance would never let him discuss even the most innocuous matters. 

And now the man was dead, leaving a family behind.  Paul wondered if Isaac had planned for a rainy day and left enough insurance and savings to cover the family’s expenses after he was gone.

They mentioned suicide, but Isaac wasn’t that kind of guy.  He wasn’t afraid of guns, but didn’t own one himself.

Paul’s intuition told him there was more to it than what was being reported.  He’d take a closer look; it was the least he could do for an old friend who fought hard to expose corruption and give recognition to those who protected democracy.
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CHAPTER THREE
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22nd police precinct.  SE Washington, D.C.

Paul Decker strode into the police station, nodding to the several officers that he knew, then walked up to the desk manned by Sergeant Daniel Quinn who was immersed in his paperwork.  Quinn was a big man, in height and in girth.  A ruddy face typical of the Irish, magnified by drinking, yet with a smile that didn’t take a lot of coaxing.

“What’s shakin’ Dan?” Paul asked in a light-hearted manner.

Surprised by the familiar voice, the sergeant looked up.  ‘Decker?  I thought you were overseas.”

“Ran out of targets.”

“Ha.  Say, how’s the wife and kids?” Dan asked, then winced, remembering that it was a subject too painful to bring up.

“About a thousand miles from here physically and a million miles away emotionally.”

“Yeah, well this is the city of lost marriages and old friends becoming new enemies,” Quinn mentioned in passing.

“You have a way with words, Dan,” Paul said.

“Well you didn’t come by to shoot the breeze.  What’s up?”

Paul put a small white box tied in a ribbon on the counter.

Quinn picked it up, shook it.  “An IED?”

“Baklava...for your wife.  You remember, she made me promise to bring some back.”

“I do now.”

“You could tell her it’s from you and take all the credit.”

“She knows I don’t give a shit about things like that.  She’s lucky she gets laid on Christmas Day.”

“You are a generous man, Dan.”

“Yeah, a real mush mouse.”

“You got my mail?” Paul asked.

The sergeant reached down below the counter and came up holding a big bunch of envelopes, large and small, held together by a thick rubber band.

“That all of it?” Paul asked, breezing through the pile.

“That includes the drop offs from some unsavory types,” Dan said, with an emphasis on unsavory.

“Any one unusual?”

“Decker, everyone who knows you is unusual.”

“I ever tell you how much I appreciate your help?” Paul asked.

“Yeah, but I never believed you.”

“Funny guy,” Paul replied.  “Anything of interest going on?” Paul asked, trying to redirect the conversation.  “I’m tired of watching ‘The Voice’ and ‘Survivor’.”

“We could use some help here.  You ready to put on a blue uniform?”

“Does it come with a bulls-eye on the back?” Paul quipped.

“Ha.  A little more humor around here would do a world of good.”

“Oh...?”

“Seems we’ve had a rash of suicides; makes for one hell of a lot of paperwork.”

“I only knew of one,” Paul replied.

“Yeah well there‘s so much crime in D.C., it takes a mass murder to hit the front page.”

“Any connection between them?” Paul asked, his interest piqued.

“None that we know of.”

“You don’t sound convinced.”

“Suspicious,” Dan replied in a way that implied more.

“How so?”

“Guy named Mayweather, Isaac.  Shot, drown.  Classified as a suicide.”

“Yeah.  One hell of a reporter.  He was tenacious.  When he sank his teeth in a story he never let go.  What do you know that the papers aren’t saying?”

“Between you and me, word I get is he died from a bullet to the head.  Dead before he hit the water.”

“And that’s suspicious?  Sounds pretty typical to me,” Paul said dismissively.

“Bullet entrance was in the back of the head, not side.”

“Oh.”

“Yeah, oh.  The Feds stepped in, rushed the autopsy, sequestered the notes.”

“Any theories?” Paul asked quickly, adding up the facts in his head.

“The guy was subpoenaed by Congress.  They wanted his sources and notes.  Supposedly knew too much about the wrong people.”

“That easy...?”

“This goes way up the food chain, Decker.  I won’t touch it with a pole.  You go there, better be wearing a vest.”

“Sounds like something right up my alley.”

“I’ll have to go out and buy a new black suit.”

“I was following the story in the paper.  Knew the man; had a family; was one of the good guys.  Didn’t deserve to die.”

“Got in way over his head.  As a friend, I suggest you stay away.”

Paul dismissed the warning: too much like all the ones he had heard before.

“You know me...once I get curious...”

“Curiosity killed the cat,” Dan reminded him.

“Yeah but the cat didn’t have an eighteen shot Glock with laser sighting.”
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CHAPTER FOUR
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Washington, D.C.. Metro.  Rush Hour.  Dusk

The sky turned the color of gunmetal gray and blanketed the city.  Wind and rain swept in at an angle picking up hats, umbrellas, and newspapers that chased each other down the block.    

People moved swiftly from street to shelter, one step ahead of cars and buses throwing slush onto the sidewalks.  

Below ground, subway trains raced through the tunnels of the city.  Passengers, though sandwiched together like cattle in a pen, remained aloof, allowing others their personal space in a spaceless environment.  

One man watched the others closely.  He cared about them, felt he knew them, each and every one.  He wanted to explain to them who he was and what he was going to do.  Yet he didn’t think they would understand the complexity, the magnitude of the problem, and even if they did, they had too little time and energy left at the end of the day to really do something about it.  But he understood the ramifications, and he was going to take action, even though aware of the potential consequences.  

Stanley Abrams had remained noncommittal while others, though a very few, stood and voiced their concerns.  He would now join them in words and deeds.

The train sped on, the lights flickering in and out as the subway traveled along old tracks, jostling riders when the cars made sharp turns.  

Stanley was the quality comptroller for Dillard Electronics.  He had evidence that his company, and others in the same industry, were illegally dumping toxic waste in third world countries, causing a myriad of horrible diseases and early deaths.  When Stanley presented the evidence to his superiors, they told him to keep his mouth shut and get back to work.

Stanley made it abundantly clear what he was going to do.  Since they were not willing to expose their complicity in environmental crimes, he would take it upon himself.  He just needed to wrap up some personal matters before speaking to a reporter from The Washington Examiner the next morning, then the Senate committee the day after.

He was aware of the risks, and so was hedging his bet.  Everyone knew he was scheduled to testify in two days in front of the Senate.  But no one knew of his planned meeting with the reporter.  If anything did happen to him, at least his story would not be lost in bureaucratic quick sand.

He got off the train and watched as it fled into the dark.

Camden South Condos, in the Capitol Hill District of Washington, D.C.

The subway deposited him one block from his apartment.  Yet even in that short a distance, 

Stanley found himself soaked by the time he reached the entrance 

“Good evening, Mr. Abrams,” the doorman said energetically.  The attendant opened the door wide for the tenant.   He wore big smiles but seemed to be trying them out, looking for one that fit what he thought people were expecting.

The man took a closer look at the tenant from apartment 1404 and added, “’Not a night fit for man or beast.’  Did you know that was W.C. Fields, Mr. Abrams?  1933 movie: ‘The Fatal Bottle of Beer’.”

Stanley tried to smile but all he could do was stretch his lips.  “Sorry, Walter, in a hurry tonight.”

“Yes, sir, Mr. Abrams.  I understand,” Walter apologized, and nodded his goodnight.

Stanley lived alone - since his divorce eight years before - on the fourteenth floor of the concrete and stone high-rise.

In his excitement, he pressed the elevator button twice, feeling that it was moving far too slow on this occasion.

At 7:46 P.M., according to the hallway monitors, Stanley Abrams entered his apartment.  At 8:02 Stanley was splayed out on the sidewalk, one hundred and forty feet below and two feet out from the building.

Detectives at the scene noted that homicides generally hit close; suicides landed further out.  The original report mentioned the distance, but by the time the investigation was turned over to the F.B.I., the figures changed and the conclusion of the local police were overruled: death by suicide was now the official version.
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Washington Examiner. 41 S.E. Monroe.  Washington, D.C.

Rebecca Novak, veteran reporter for the newspaper, hovered over the back-lit desk.  Next to Rebecca was her assistant, Meg Olson, photographer, Kenny Landon, and photo editor and layout manager, Harry Winston.

Meg repositioned the prior layout using the touch screen to shrink one article and drag and drop another picture and article in the available space.

“Who do you have there?” Rebecca asked.

“A colleague of Isaac Mayweather at The Capital Star.  He says Isaac shared some of what he was working on and is willing to go on the record.”

“And he’s not afraid of suffering the same fate as Isaac?” Rebecca questioned the sanity.

“He said he’s already contacted the Senate sub-committee on election fraud.”

“That makes the issue twenty-four pages,” Harry reminded the others.

“And we’ve only interviewed half the witnesses, experts in the related fields, family and friends, business associates,” Meg replied.  “I’d say more like thirty-two pages.”

“And you’ve knocked out a half dozen of my best photos,” Ken said, dismissing the relevance of the long articles.

“The paper only authorized sixteen pages,” Harry replied.  He was old school, gruff in his manners but almost always right regarding his work.

Rebecca’s back hairs went up.  “I’ll get the approval; you just worry about how to juxtapose the photos with the copy.”

“I don’t like wasting my time,” Harry said, tossing a marking pen on to the table.

“This is going to be the most important supplemental issue the paper produces this year...maybe ever.  We’ve got dead bodies floating in the rivers, jumpers from high-rises, traffic accidents that witness say weren’t accidents, levels of corruption at their highest since Sodom and Gomorrah.”

“And you’re going to expose every one of those crimes and stay alive long enough to garner a Pulitzer,” Harry scoffed.

Meg stepped in between Rebecca and Harry.  “If Rebecca says she can do it, then it’ll happen.  And I’m in this with her to the end.”

“The end being...?” Kenny said morbidly.

“Hey, if you want out, it’s not a problem,” Rebecca replied.  “I’ve got a dozen guys, younger, more energetic, who haven’t lost their passion, ready to take your place.”

Kenny put out his hands.  “Hey, no need to get pissy.  I am, after all, the guy who’s gotten all the before-and-after photos of the recently diseased.”

“’And it was good work, Kenny,” Rebecca said, “but I need you to keep it up.”

“Just make sure you get my name on the cover in the right font size.”

Rebecca looked up at the clock.  “Shit, I need to run.”

“What do you want me to do?” Meg asked, ready to take notes.

“Interviews with co-workers, family, friends, neighbors of the diseased.  I want to know what motivated these men to take such risks.  They were average people who did extraordinary things.”

“How about pictures of—?” Kenny began.

“You figure it out.”

“Does that mean....?

By that time, Rebecca was out the door.
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Java Joe’s.  Georgetown University.  Washington, D.C.

Paul Decker strolled slowly through the campus.  He was early for his appointment and could think of nowhere else he wanted to be at that moment, than on the tree-lined grounds of Georgetown University and its storied red brick buildings.

The college occupied an impressive two hundred acres, and was often ranked number one among the country's top schools.  

Pine, cedar and fir trees lined every path through the grounds and surrounded the buildings so well, it took a second glance to see them.  The atmosphere seemed so serene and surreal it made Paul painfully aware of what he had missed as a young man by joining the army right out of high school.

He continued on his way to meet Rebecca Novak at the busiest coffee shop on campus.  He could tell from the sound of her voice when she called that it was serious; maybe serious as a heart-attack, although he had trouble wrapping his head around that.

When he arrived, he saw a line that snaked out the door.  He wondered why she had chosen the location.  

I guess I’ll find out soon enough, he said to himself.

Rebecca had taken a seat in the far back.  That told Paul something, he just wasn’t sure yet what that was.  

Paul slid into the booth.  As soon as he did, Rebecca reached across the table and offered her hand, which Paul immediately took.  Her grip was strong, which did not surprise him, knowing she did a lot of hard, physical labor growing plants and doing yard work at her home.  Yet this time, it felt like something more.

Rebecca smiled, but it was strained.  It surprised him.  She was a seasoned reporter, covering the tough beats: murder, rape, robbery.

Rebecca was beautiful in a European way: high cheek bones, aquiline nose, full, wide lips, piercing green eyes, long, wavy scarlet hair.  She had the body of a runway model: tall, thin, but with a little more fullness in just the right places.  An expression of empathy permeated her features, a deep-seated concern for others borne out of her work as a reporter.

Her skin was unmarred, somehow immune from the stresses of dealing with late night escapades: chasing stories that couldn’t wait till morning, then writing copy fast enough to make the early edition.

Yet her beauty just as often worked against her.  She was not always taken seriously by others in the organization, people who chose to dismiss her work as coming from a “lightweight.”

The two had a history.  He just wasn’t sure if they were both viewed it the same way.  It was ten years ago.  Paul was assigned White House duty, one year to train secret service agents in the art of hand-to-hand combat.

Word got out, Rebecca sniffed a story, and went to meet him.

She was curious as to why she could never get soldiers to take her seriously.  Rebecca felt she had missed out on some good stories because they were always more interested in getting in her pants than treating her as a professional and sharing their personal stories that her readers were anxious to hear.

Paul explained that soldiers thought about two things: killing the enemy and bragging about the women they bedded.  Anything else was just stuff that got in the way.  And a young professional, all business woman, was more than most of them could handle graciously.

She was thankful enough of Paul to ask him to dinner; her treat.  He accepted, but insisted on Dutch.  Over a meal that went on for five hours, and two bottles of Sauvignon Blanc, they shared more of their lives with each other than they ever had with their respective ex-spouses.

The two of them had more in common than either gave themselves credit for.  

During the evening they found each had preconceived notions: Paul thought her a bit naive about war.  She thought him a jarhead with no concern for intellectual matters.  They found both premises false and gave each other grudging respect.

That began a lot of late night talks about everything from astronomy to God to politics, which they both found ugly, petty, and vile...with the leaders of Congress increasingly isolated from the American people.

There came a night and a time when the talk and the wine coalesced.  Yet it was Rebecca who forced the issue off dead center.  Do I need to drag you back to my apartment? she had asked.

I’m old enough to be your father, he had said.

I love my father, she’d replied.

The relationship was intense, compressed between his deployments and her assignments, and would have lasted had it not been for the fact that Paul was reassigned out of the country to AFRCORP.

The years had been good to her.  As for himself, he avoiding mirrors like Count Dracula.  But now there was a new look on her face.  She was exhausted, her faced stretched thin with stress, maybe even fear.

Paul immediately dove in the deep end of the pool.  “Now what’s so—.”

Rebecca reached out and gripped his arm.  “Lower your voice!”

“I thought we were just—.”

“We weren’t ‘just’ anything, Paul.”

He got it, leaned in, and said, “Okay.  Then why don’t you bring me up to speed on this.  You’ve got my full attention.”

The waitress came over and set down two coffees.

“I took the liberty of ordering for us,” Rebecca said. 

Paul nodded.

“Can I get you something else?” the young lady asked in a chipper tone.

“No, thanks,” Rebecca replied.  “This is fine.”

The waitress smiled and left.

Rebecca waited till the barista was out of ear shot.  “I’ve been following the Senate hearings, investigation into vote rigging, environment crimes, CIA over-reach.  Seems everyone willing to speak out about the matter is winding up dead...in a suspicious manner.”

“Was one of them Isaac Mayweather?” Paul asked rhetorically.

“Yes, but how did....?”

“A desk sergeant I know told me it smelled funny.  Classified a suicide but the bullet entered the back of his head.”

“You’re right so far,” Rebecca said.  

“Then tell me what else you’ve got,” Paul said, not up for playing a game of cat and mouse.

“Last night, a guy named Stanley Abrams took a dive off his balcony.”

“News said Abrams was scheduled to testify before the senate today,” Paul added.

“The operative word here is ‘was’,” she said.

“I detect a twinge of sarcasm in your voice.”

“He was going to speak to me first.  Abrams was my ticket to a Pulitzer Prize.  Now all I’ve got is a ticket to pick up my dry cleaning.”

“What’s the connection between Mayweather and Abrams?” Paul asked.

“I didn’t see any connection...before.  Now, I’m not so sure.  Mayweather was looking into vote rigging.  Abrams had found evidence of massive dumping of toxic waste.  He was scheduled to testify before Congress about environmental crimes by the transnational corporations.” 

“Sounds to me like you’re on to something,” Paul replied.  “Two people, both set to testify before Congress.  Both die within forty-eight hours of when they were to appear.”

“I think they pissed off some very important people,” Rebecca concluded.

“Or organization.”

“Stanley was the quality controller at Dillard Electronics,” Rebecca explained.  “Said he had proof of his company illegally dumping toxic material; and that he’d spoken to people in the same position at other companies.  It took him years.  He placed ads in trade publications under a pseudonym, collecting information from people in transnational industries who might know something.  He’s got names, places, dates.”

“Had,” Paul reminded Rebecca.

“Yeah, thanks for cheering me up.”

“But the information may still be out there,” Paul suggested.

“That’s why I need you, Decker,” Rebecca said.  “You’re like a Star Trek crew member: ‘You go where no man has gone before’.”

“It’s tough to believe you’ve got a story that no one else has ever found.”

“Are you saying I didn’t verify all this?” she asked, her back hairs up.

“Hey, go easy on me; I’m on your side.”

“Sorry.  I guess I’m a little on edge after the events of the past forty-eight hours.”

Paul picked up his coffee cup and motioned for Rebecca to do the same.  

Her hands were shaking and she put down her cup noisily.

Paul thought they both needed a break, so he reached out and took her hand in his, giving whatever reassurance he could.

After what he felt was an appropriate period of time, he asked, “What else have you put together?  You’re very good at solving puzzles.”

“Abrams believed he’d never make it to Capitol Hill and wanted to go on record with me.”

“He knew his life was on the line but still went ahead with it?” Paul asked, incredulous

“Abrams learned that thousands of people have died, water supplies poisoned, toxic spills, cancers, land made unproductive.  And that they’d continue to do their dirty work unless someone took a stand.”

“Like standing on the ledge of a tall building,” Paul said.

“Funny guy.  I’m glad you still have a sense of humor.”

“When you go up against transnational corporations and the government, and, more than likely, the CIA, there’s going to be blowback,” Paul warned.

“Someone’s got to blow the whistle on this; figured there was no one better qualified than me.”

“I knew Mayweather,” Paul mentioned.  “He was as dedicated as you; now he’s a statistic.  You still want to go there?”

“As long as there are people who want to talk, I’m going to listen.”

“News said Abrams was a jumper,” Paul said, getting back on subject.

“Yeah.  He jumped over his apartment balcony and hit the deck fourteen stories down.”

“Ugly.  I’ve seen jumpers before.  Not a pretty sight.”

“Police stamped it a suicide,” Rebecca said.

“And you don’t think it was?”

“A detective I’m friendly with was one of the first to the scene.  Said Abrams hit the deck two feet from the building.”

“And?”

“The way he explained it to me, homicides generally hit close, jumpers land further out.  Feds rushed in, changed the numbers, classified it as a suicide, took all the notes from the city cops; told them to forget the whole thing and go about their business.”

“That’s lethal,” Paul said.

“Oh, really?” Rebecca snipped.  Then you’ll like this even better.”
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“I’m still listening,” Paul replied.

“Homeland Security came in after the feds, took their notes, told them to forget the whole thing.”

“And I’ll bet if you had a source inside Homeland Security, they’d tell you the same story,” Paul suggested.

“I do have a source inside Homeland Security.”

“Oh?” Paul asked, surprised her contacts went that high up.

“Yeah, oh.  And you know what he told me?”

“No.”

“He said, ’You don’t want to know.’  I told him I’d take the risk.  He told me to forget it and hung up on me.  Do you know what that means?” she asked.

“Who...or what is higher up than Homeland Security?” Paul posed the question.

“Don’t they report directly to the president?” Rebecca considered.

“They restructured national security after 9/11,” Paul explained.  “There’re now twenty-six agencies under an umbrella with the National Security Director at the top, but I don’t think anyone really knows who reports to who.  It’s no longer a straight line.”

“There are several hearings underway on Capitol Hill,” Rebecca said, changing the direction of the conversation.  “The House Oversight and Reform Committee is holding hearings on election fraud.  The Senate Judiciary committee is looking into environmental crimes.  And the House Foreign Affairs has been questioning the CIA and their covert operations

“Pretty hard to do with dead witnesses,” Paul mentioned in passing.  “Is anyone still alive to testify?”

“I’m sure there are lots, but since Mayweather and Abrams bit the dust, they’ve all claimed up; gone underground.  I need to find them in order to get the whole picture.”

“That big picture might just be their photo on the front page of the Washington Star...or yours.”

“You ever think about doing stand-up comedy?” Rebecca quipped.

“This might go pretty far up the food chain,” Paul warned.

“I’d bet my life on it.” 

“You might just be doing that,” Paul warned.

“Don’t woss out on me, Decker.”

“Actually, I was thinking of you, not me.”

“I appreciate your concern, but I’m a big girl and I know what I’m getting into,” Rebecca replied.

“Okay,” Paul said, putting his hands up in front of him.  “Don’t kill the messenger.”

“A guy named Monroe, Professor Harry Monroe, was interviewed on TV a few nights back,” Rebecca said.

“What’s his take on all of this?” 

“He was speaking about a connection between assassinations, going back as far as 1914, and continuing to this day, taking place on every continent, and in almost every country on the planet.”

“So who does that implicate?” Paul asked.

“I thought you would know.”

“The CIA?”

“That’s the only organization I know of who could do that,” Rebecca said.

“But they weren’t even in existence in 1914,” Paul argued.

“Maybe they just weren’t called that at the time,” Rebecca suggested.  “Maybe whoever was running the show used another moniker.

“After the interview,” Rebecca went on, “Monroe was asked to testify on The Hill, bring his data and his notes to the House Foreign Affairs Committee.”

Paul stopped to consider how he could help, then said, “Where is Monroe now?”

“He got death threats.  Hired a lawyer; went underground.”

“That sounds like a dead end.”

“Except when you call Monroe’s office at the university, it refers all calls to an attorney name Vance, Zachary Vance.”

“And is there a way we can get to this lawyer guy, or is he in hiding too?” Paul asked curtly.

“I tried his office yesterday.  Told them I was a reporter.  Big mistake.  They wouldn’t give me the time of day.”

“And so...?”

“I called back today.  Told them I was the mother of a child who’s in the hospital and the doctors want to take her off life support.”

“That would qualify you for the liar’s hall of fame.”

“I do whatever’s necessary.  If I have to get down and dirty, I will.”

“You got an address?” Paul asked, ready to delve into his bag of tricks.

“I tell you and you leave me at the curb, while you drive off and throw gravel in my face as you peel out.”

“You paint a beautiful picture,” Paul admitted.

“Just because we’re able to find him, doesn’t mean he’ll talk to us,” Rebecca said.

“I have a way of convincing people to talk who weren’t, at first, in the mood.”

“I know it’s probably a long shot, but ...”

“But...?” Paul asked, trying to pull more out of her.

Rebecca thought for a moment before going on.  “What do environmental crime, vote rigging and CIA assassinations have in common?” she asked.

“Nothing I can see.”

“Well, they’re all being investigated at the same time on Capitol Hill and in all three cases, people who were to testify are dead, or going into hiding, fearing for their lives.  

“So...?”

“Three independent organizations are not capable of coordinating these murders on their own, then circumventing the local police and FBI and Homeland Security, and have them stamped suicides.”

“Supposedly independent,” Paul suggested.

“Right,” Rebecca agreed.

“But what’s the goal?” he asked, playing catch up.

“I haven’t figured that out yet.”

“Well, you’ve hooked a big one, girl.  Now you just have to reel it in.”

“I need a potty break,” Rebecca announced.  “Promise me you won’t go anywhere.”

“You got it, kid.”

When Rebecca left to go to the bathroom, Paul had nothing else to occupy him, so he went into military mode and surveyed the coffee shop...looking for what, he wasn’t sure.  Everyone seemed to fit in...except two men toward the front.  They were wearing sun-glasses inside and their suits looked baggy...which was usually the sign of someone hiding something underneath.

Maybe it was his paranoia: always on enemy ground, going up against bad guys of all shapes and sizes.  Still, with the story Rebecca related to him about Monroe, Abrams and Mayweather, he felt he had to investigate.

Paul picked up his coffee and walked to the front.  As he went by the table the two men were seated at, he feigned a trip and spilled the coffee on to the jacket of one of the men.  “Shit!  Oh, hell, excuse me.  I’m a klutz,” Paul said, then began wiping the man’s jacket, a pretext to feel if he was armed.  Sure enough, he was.

The big man grabbed Paul’s hand, squeezed as hard as he could, and forced it away.  “I’ll take care of it.  Just go.”

Paul picked up a napkin and started again to wipe away the coffee.  “No, I insist on fixing something I caused.”

This time the man grabbed Paul’s fingers and bent them back: the work of someone trained in martial arts or police hand-to-hand combat.

“Ouch,” Paul said.  “You don’t have to get nasty.”

“You call this being nasty?” Mr. Sunglasses asked, then pulled the gun out from his jacket.  “I’ll show you nasty.”

In a split second, Paul pushed down with one hand, grabbed the gun with the other, and pointed it back at the man.  “Didn’t your mama ever tell you not to play with fire-arms?”

The man got up, ready to lunge at Paul.  The second guy, who was even bigger than the first, grabbed his friend’s arm and moved him toward the front door, causing other customers to cry out and scatter.

“We were leaving anyway,” the second man said.  “Maybe we’ll meet again...in a more secluded place where we can resolve our differences of opinions.”

Just as they hit the door, Paul threw the gun to the guy he disarmed.  He caught it like the pro he was.  They left without another word and Paul retuned to his seat just as Rebecca came out of the bathroom.

“Did you miss me?” she asked.

“No, I ran into an old friend and we chatted for a while.”

“Oh, that’s nice.”

“Pick up where you left off,” Paul insisted.

“You’re still interested?” she asked.

“Now, more than ever.”

“I’m scared, Paul.  Every person I contacted, or was suppose to talk, has met with an untimely death.”

“Then drop it; it’s not worth your life.”

“Drop it?”

“Yes.”

“This could be the biggest story I’ve ever covered; maybe the biggest story any reporter has covered since Watergate.  I can’t walk away and hope someone else picks up the ball.  And reporting is my life’s work.  Almost every country on the planet is suffering because of illicit programs.  It’s got to stop.”

“You mentioned this guy, Vance.  Maybe I can choke the information out of him.”

“My information is on a need to know basis.  When you need to know it, I’ll tell you.  That way you won’t be able to leave me behind, maybe as road kill on the 495 Beltway.”

“Right,” he laughed until he saw Rebecca was serious.

“You’ve done things like this before,” she said.  “Where do we go from here?”

“We climb the food chain until we get to the top, then lop off its head.”

“Your detailed plan doesn’t exactly inspire confidence.”

“It may sound simple, but it’s worked pretty well in the past.  I won’t have much, if anything, to go on unless you can point me in the right direction.”

“Just remember; this is my Pulitzer.  I’m not letting go and I’m not going to feed you intel then sit back and watch from the sidelines.”

Seeing he wasn’t about to convince Rebecca otherwise he said, “It’s a deal.  But when we’re out in the field, I give the orders and you’ll either abide by them or I’ll send you packin’ home to mama.”

“Don’t you worry your pretty little head, Decker.  I’ll pull my own weight.”

“You realize you’re going to piss off a lot of very important people,” he warned.

“Just keep me alive long enough to finish putting all the pieces together.”

“What’s our first stop?” Paul asked.

“Zachary Vance, attorney-at-law.”
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Westfield’s Marriott, Chantilly, Virginia

The meeting took place at the lavish hotel the night before the new president of the United States was to be sworn in.  A very exclusive group was celebrating the victory of their hand-picked candidate.

The convention room displayed a Roman theme: a fitting scene for the over-bearing arrogance, megalomania and financial turpitude of the attendees.

Air conditioning ran full blast to ward off the warm, humid summer night.  The ladies and gentlemen in the room, over-dressed as they were, did not perspire.  It seemed as though they were immune to heat and inculcated against sweat.  Perspiring was something done by the lower classes.

Tables were weighed down with food and beverages.  The attendees picked sparingly at the delicacies spread before them: duck, goose, salmon, sea bass, buffalo, a wide assortment of greens, four types of potatoes, fresh baked breads and wines from Chile, France and Germany.

The selections were offered on gold inlaid, ivory place-settings accompanied by pure silver utensils; the beverages in crystal wine glasses.

Present were the heads of the biggest military defense contractors, the largest banks, and the CEOs of eight trans-national corporations, along with ex-presidents, ambassadors, senators, congressional representatives and cabinet officers of the United States and a full contingent of royalty from foreign nations.  Also represented were the Council for Foreign Relations, World Bank, Trilateral Commission and International Monetary Fund.  Rounding out the guest list was president-elect, Yousef Mustafa.

“Congratulations, Yousef,” ex-President Lawrence Mathews offered with a hand flourish.  “I am your host at this auspicious event.”

He reached out to shake hands with Yousef, who accepted the gesture.  “I’m very glad I have this opportunity to speak to you all; to tell you my agenda for the country,” Yousef announced.

“When those causes are in alignment with ours, then yes,” CFR chairman Emanuel Moresi clarified.

“There is no higher authority than the president,” Yousef insisted

“Let me explain it, slowly, so you’re sure to understand it,” EU President Charles Clarion said.  “You’re an invited guest.”  He said, as if talking to a lesser species.  

“You’re here to learn our agenda.”  Charles took a deep breath and became reflective.  “At times like this I become nostalgic for when I knew nothing.  There are so few mysteries left.”

“We say who to nominate for your cabinet, who to pick for the Supreme Court, which programs to present to Congress,” president of the IMF, Louis Finestre began.  “It’s our billions of dollars that drove the election process; without us, you’d still be a college professor, grading papers, praying for tenure.”

“I’d like to say something,” Yousef interjected.

Dom Thurman, from the Trilateral Commission, said, “Shut the hell up, boy.  You got nothin’ to say.  You’re only along for the ride.  When we want you to speak, we’ll rattle your cage.  We’ll tell you what to say and when to say it.”

“You can’t—,” Yousef said, standing tall and approaching the man.

“You don’t get it, Yousef,” Noland Ridley of the World Bank said, clutching Yousef’s arm and pulling him back.  “You’re a front man.  We’re the people behind the curtain pulling the strings.”

“Like the Wizard in Oz?” Yousef asked, laughing at his own joke.

“Yes, exactly like the Wizard of Oz,” Ridley assured.

“I’ll have you know I graduated Stanford Law School and taught constitutional law at—.”

“Silencio,” Claudio Slim, of Groupo One ordered.  “You are here to listen, not to speak.”

“Do you even realize how powerful we are?” Charles asked, then answered his own question.  “We got you elected even though you were born in a foreign country, you’re a Muslim, you have no national or international experience, and went to a church where the reverend cursed White people as the devil.”

“We overcame all those obstacles,” Australian Prime Minister Tommy Brown said, then added, “And that doesn’t even address your sexual proclivities.”

“Some people have said I might be assassinated before I even pass my first piece of legislation,” Yousef said

“I think we can guarantee you that won’t happen,” Claudio Slim assured.

“And just how can you do that?” Yousef asked, a truly worried man.

“We do the assassinating,” Claudio Slim assured, slapping Yousef on the back hard enough to bend the new president in half.

Yousef stood up straight and adjusted his jacket and tie, proclaiming himself a V.I.P.  “You’ve told me what you want; now I’ll tell you what I want.”

“Sure, Yousef,” Dom Thurman responded.  “We’d love to hear your bucket list.”

“First, I’d—.”

The whole room began laughing.  The uproar startled Yousef.

“I didn’t even say anything.  What’s so funny?” he demanded, his face flushed.

“We’re the ones who set the agenda,” Noland Ridley said, pinching Yousef on the cheek hard enough to make him wince.  “You just sit there like the dutiful son and wait for orders from on high.”
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Outside Java Joe’s coffee shop.  Georgetown University, Washington, D.C.

Paul and Rebecca left the coffee shop engrossed in conversation.

They didn’t hear the sound until the bullet hit the wall just behind them, knocking off a piece of brick.

High powered rife, Paul immediately concluded.  The bullets went supersonic, which meant the sound was heard after impact.

He pulled Rebecca down behind a car parked at the curb.

“What the ...?” she asked, not getting the connection between the sound and Paul’s reaction.

Another bullet hit the car, went though the roof and out the side window, just missing the two of them.

“Jesus Christ!” Rebecca exclaimed.  “What the hell is going on?”  She began to get up to see.

Paul pulled her down violently just as another bullet whizzed past her head.

Paul pulled out his Glock but did not fire.

“Why don’t you shoot back, damn it?’ Rebecca demanded.

“He’s at least a quarter mile away, using a high-powered rifle with a scope.  My gun is accurate for maybe a hundred feet.  If I stand up to fire, he’ll take my head off.”

“Shit.  Sorry,” she replied.  

Another bullet hit the rear window of the car, exploding out the back glass.

“What now?” Rebecca asked.  “We can’t stay here forever.”

Just then, sirens could be heard.  And from the sound, they were headed towards the shooting.

“That’s our signal to get out of here.”

“Don’t you want to stay and tell the police what happened?” she asked.

“Right now, I don’t know who the bad guys are.  We’re not going to stick around to find out we chose wrongly.”

“Jesus.  What have I gotten us into?”
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Portland, Oregon

The room fell silent as the typing ceased.  An intense, anxious woman folded her laptop and pushed back from the table.  Laura Atkins had become anorexic, having disregarded too many meals in her manic state.  So dedicated was she to her work that personal needs had become secondary to the needs of the country.

She had just finished editing her report.  It had taken her more than a decade to gather and confirm the revelations.  There was no longer a scintilla of doubt about who was responsible for the government coups d'état in South America.  Some thought it was rival groups in those countries, but she knew there was a coordinated effort to control the continent and its natural resources.  And that news would shake the world.  She would send the report to the prosecutor at The Hague after one more review for typos.  In the interim, she took a break to feed her cats.  All came at her beckoning, save one.

From the back door came a “Meow.”

“How did you get out?” she asked herself.  “It’s chilly out there and you know you don’t like the cold.  If you’re ready to come in, I’ll warm up some milk for you.”

Laura - all five feet, and one hundred pounds of her - opened the door to allow the Cheshire back in.  Instead of a cat rushing in, a very large man, who took up the width of the doorway, reached in and cupped a hand over her mouth before she could scream.  The intruder dragged her to the dining room and forced her into a chair.  

Another man, shorter but more sinister-looking - with narrow, squinted eyes, beneath a hat pulled down low, covering most of his forehead, and lips frozen in a perpetual sneer - entered the house behind the first man.  

He unzipped a small carrying case, took out a syringe, pushed the needle tip into a vile and took up the liquid contents, smiling at his handiwork and the fear he could instill.  Even if it were saline solution, he knew that just the sight of the needle was enough to extract information from the most reluctant subject.  

Laura’s eyes bulged when she saw the syringe.  The veins in her temples and neck pulsated.  She tried to scream but the huge hand over her mouth made that impossible.  Only a squeak came out.

“When my friend takes his hand away from your mouth you will answer my questions,” the smaller man said reassuringly.  “If you try to scream I will kill all your cats in the most horrible, protracted manner imaginable.  Nod your head if you understand.”

Laura nodded vigorously. 

“Where are the files?” the man asked, watching the woman carefully.

The giant removed his hand.

“Who are you?  Why are you doing this?”

“But you know who we are,” the smaller man said.

“No!  You must have me confused for someone else,” she lied, grasping for her last straw of freedom.

The big man placed his hand over her mouth again.  

“That is not the answer to our question.  Let’s try once more.  Where are the files?” he asked, then took his hand away.

Laura gasped for air.  It took her several seconds before she could breathe in enough air to talk.  “It’s all in my laptop,” she said, spewing the words out before the hand returned.  Her eyes looked toward the computer on the coffee table.  

“Anything anywhere else?” he asked in a pleasant, off-handed way.  

For a split second, the woman thought there was a chance she might live through the ordeal.

“No.  Nothing.  I swear!” she exclaimed, immediately realizing she had given away her only leverage.  She thrashed and struggled, biting down hard as the hulk cupped his hand over her mouth again.  The man was unfazed.

“Everything?  You’re certain?” the smaller man said, then nodded to his friend who removed his hand from Laura’s mouth.

“Yes, yes.  Take them and go.  Please let me—.”

“We will use those to confirm what you tell us.  If there are any discrepancies, we will come back for the cats.”

“I will tell you.  Just don’t hurt—.”

“Your research!” the small man bellowed loud enough to make Laura cringe.

“Oh, God.  Forgive me,” she cried and crossed herself.

“It is we who will decide your fate, not God.”

“You are not God; you are the Devil.”

The beast raised his hand to slap Laura.

She cringed.  With all hope now gone, she began.  “I have learned that the CIA has played a role in hundreds of assassinations, military coups, and rebellions in South America going as far back as 1947.  The CIA's objective has always been imperialist in nature.  Whether oil in Venezuela, or bananas in Guatemala, the CIA has a material interest in every country that America has an interest in, either due to left-wing politics, natural resources, or military bases. 

“The CIA recruited influential, intellectual and charismatic personalities to carry out their polices and programs.  The agency used threats, kidnapping, torture, enforced disappearances and assassinations.  The organization incited violence, uprisings and military rebellion, and caused economic chaos and misery to the people through scarcity of basic foods and health care and schools.”

“Good,” the small man said.  “Very good.  You see, we knew you could do it.  Please go on.”

Laura looked around for her cats.  They were huddled in a corner, lying partially on top of one another to conserve heat.  Satisfied they were safe for the moment, she went on.  “In Ecuador, in the 1970s, the CIA conducted Operation Condor in order to stop the spread of Communism.  They assassinated President Roldos because they believed he was a leftist and replaced him with Osvaldo Larrea.  The CIA then trained the Ecuadorian military that operated death squads eventually killing sixty thousand people who were left leaning.”

The small man rolled his hand to get Laura to speed up her report.

Laura began shaking and could not stop.

The little man patted her on the back in a paternal gesture and said soothingly, “You can do it.”

“Yes, yes.  In 1944, the U.S.-backed dictatorship of Jorge Ubico in Guatemala was overthrown by a popular uprising.  Ubico was a puppet of the United Fruit Company, which basically enslaved the population.  It stripped Indigenous people of their lands and forced them to work their own parcels and paid them crumbs.  Those who dared to disobey were brutally punished by a police force working for the U.S. agricultural company.  The victory of the uprising brought peace to the country for seven years, and in 1951 it brought progressive Jacobo Arbenz - who sought agrarian reform - to power.  In 1954, the CIA launched an operation where Guatemala City was bombed by U.S. warplanes and Arbenz was ousted in a coup d’ etad and replaced by Carlos Armas, the CIA choice.  Under a series of military rulers after the coup, Guatemala suffered three decades of repression in which as many as 200,000 people died, many of them campesinos killed by security forces.”

Laura was sweating from fear and shaking from cold.  She wiped the sweat off her brow with a small towel that was bunched up in her hand.  She struggled to breathe and speak.

The smaller man said, “Please don’t leave anything out, dear.”

“Can I have...,” Laura began.

“No!” the little man screamed in her ear, causing Laura to fall partially out of her chair.

The man grabbed her in time and righted her chair, then whispered in her ear, “Whatever it is, the answer is no.”

Laura gathered herself up and went on...

“In Haiti, in 1959, Francois Duvalier, with the help of the CIA, created a rural militia called the Tonton Macoute after a Haitian Creole bogeyman.  This was in response to discontent among the people to his developing dictatorial rule.  The Macoute was twice as big as the army.  They were not paid; their compensation was to rape, rob, burn and steal anything they could.  Duvalier's son, and CIA-approved heir, Jean-Claude succeeded his father in 1971 and continued the bloodshed.  

“In Brazil, in 1954, President Joao Goulart, implemented a ‘Basic Reforms’ plan, which aimed to combat adult illiteracy; control the transfer of profits by multinational companies with headquarters abroad by reforming tax laws; expropriating lands stolen from or cheated out of the hands of the campesinos.  Those would be redistributed back to the population.  A year later, a military coup sponsored by the CIA, ousted Goulart.  His mistake was lessening U.S. companies' profits for the good of his people.  The U.S. ambassador, played a major role in support of the opposition against the government of Goulart and during the coup.”

Laura tried to clear her throat but it was too dry and she began coughing.  When she stopped, she said, “Can I please have some water.  My mouth is dry.”

The hulk looked around the room, then picked up the cat’s water bowl and placed it on the table.  “Here,” he said.

“But can’t I have a glass, please,” she whimpered.

The man began taking the bowl away.  She reached out and stopped him, then put her face to the bowl and lapped the water.

After she got just a few mouthfuls of the water, the man pulled it away.  “You can have more later...after you’ve finished.”

Laura licked her lips then began again.  

“During the 1960s, revolutionary movements spread through Latin America.  The United States saw influential socialist leaders emerge in the country.  In Uruguay, the urban revolutionary guerrilla group known as the Tupamaros, was lead by Jose Mujica and his wife.  The CIA became obsessed with eliminating them.  The CIA opened the ‘Office of Public Safety’ and trained local police to torture and kill.  In 1971, the CIA led a coup that put Juan Maria Bordaberry in office.  Under him, thousands of people were murdered, tortured, imprisoned, kidnapped and disappeared.”

“Ah!” the little man exclaimed in an excited voice.  “You’re doing so well.”

“Then can I...?”

“No, no, not yet, my dear,” he said.  Now go on, go on.”

“In Bolivia, in 1967, the CIA helped kill Che Guevara after he led a guerrilla war in Bolivia against the oligarchy.  In 1970, General Juan Jose Torres took power and implemented reforms to benefit workers and those living in poverty.  However, after less than a year in power, Torres was overthrown in a bloody coup led by the CIA that allowed a right-wing government to continue torturing and killing of the people.

“In 1973, the CIA led a smear campaign against the government of Chile.  They used national and international media to demonize socialist President Salvador Allende.  By causing scarcity through extortion, imprisonment, and assassinations, the CIA destabilized the country, especially after Allende nationalized natural resources.  In September of 1973, Gen. Augusto Pinochet led the military all the way to the presidential palace with the backing of the CIA, who provided him with all the necessary weapons and armored vehicles.  Pinochet ruled for seventeen years, with the official victim toll at over 80,000.  More than 200,000 Chileans were forced into exile.”
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